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ABSTRACT

The purpose of the article. The article aims to analyse archeological monuments
depicted on a little-known cartographic source - the land map of the Oleshnya district
of the first half of the 18t century.

Scientific novelty. A 1724 land map authored by geodesist Borys Baturyn is
introduced into scientific circulation. It depicts the Oleshnya District as of the first
third of the 18th century. The map contains images of administrative boundaries and
settlements. However, in our opinion, the image of two hillforts of the Ancient Rus era
and an ancient rampart is the most interesting. On the map, it runs from the
Kukuyeve hillfort to the village of Stanova in the upper reaches of the Buimer.

Conclusions. The studied map is one of the series of “Partied el’'Ukraine”, which
were compiled by geodetic surveyors from 1721 to 1725. The map is a little-known
but quite informative source for the location and names of settlements in the district,
as well as archaeological monuments. It is the result of several years of work by two
cartographers — Borys Baturyn and Ivan Khrushchev, who worked in several districts
located in the territory of the modern Sumy region.

The two hillforts pictured on the map were well-known landmarks at the time,
mentioned in administrative documents of the second half of the 17th century. The
greatest attention was paid to the localization and definition of the third
archaeological object, which was drawn during the compilation of the map. This is an
ancient rampart that has not been discovered so far and is mentioned only in this
source. The authors assume its emergence on the map.

Keywords: land map, hillfort, human settlements, city, urbanization, ancient
rampart, Oleshnya district, 18t century
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AHOTALIA

Mema cmammi. CTaTTs NpUCBSiYE€HA aHali3y NaM'siTOK apxeoJiorii, 300pakeHHUX Ha
MaJsioBijoMoMy KapTorpadiyHoMy mpkepesi - JjaHAkapTi OJIEIIHSAHCHKOrO TMOBITY NepIIoi
nosioBuHM XVIII cT.

Haykoea Hoeu3Ha. [/lo HayKoBOro 06iry BBOJAWUTBLCS JaHAKapTa 1724 p. aBTOpCTBA
reosesucra bopuca barypuna. Ha Hill 306pakeHo OsielIHAHCHKUIN NOBIT CTAHOM Ha INepLLy
tpetuny XVIII ct. KapTa MicTUTh 306pakeHHs aAMIHICTPATUBHUX MeX | HaceJleHUX MYHKTIB,
ajle HaMbinbIy LiKaBicTh, Ha HAll NOMJsAA, SBJASE 300pa)KEHHS J[JBOX TOPOJHUIL
JlaBHBOPYCbKOI'0 4acy Ta CTapoJaBHbOro Bajy, AKMW Ha KapTi npoxoaus Bij KykyeBoro
ropoauia go c. CraHoBa y BepxiB'sx Byiimepa.

Buchoeku. [locnimkyBaHa JiaHgkapTa € onHielo 3 cepil «Partied el'Ukraine», ski
ckJaganucs reoge3rctamu 3 1721 mo 1725 poku. Kapra € MasoBimoMumM, ajie DOCUTH
iHpOpMaTHBHUM /PKEpesioM I[OZ0 PO3TAlllyBaHHS Ta Ha3B HAceJEeHUX IYHKTIB MOBIiTy, a
TaKOX MaM ITOK apxeoJiorii. BoHa € pe3y/ibTaToM KijsibKapiuHOi po60TH ABOX KapTorpadis -
Bopruca bBaTypuHa Ta IBana XpyuioBa, fKi NpanioBaiyd Ha TepUTOPil KiJBKOX MOBITIB,
po3TauIoBaHUX Ha TepUTOpii cydyacHol CyMcbKoi 06./1aCTi.

JlBa 306pakeHMX Ha KapTi ropoauma 6ysad BiJIOMMMH Ha TOW 4Yac MaM SITKaMH,
3raJlyBaHUMH B aIMiHiCTpaTUBHUX JAOKyMeHTax Apyroi noysoBuHu XVII cT. Hali6inbioi yBaru
NPHU/IJIEHO JIOKaJsi3alii Ta BU3HAYEHHIO TPETHOrO0 apXeoJIOTiYHOro 06’€KTa, SAKUH 6ys0
HaHeCeHOo MpH CKJaJaHHI KapTH. lle cTapojaBHil BaJi, IKMH Ha CbOTOJHI He BUSIBJIEHUH, a
3raJIKy PO HbOTO € TIJIbKHU Y bOMY JpKepeJii. ABTOpaMH BUCJIOBJIIOETCA NPUMYLIEHHS 100
HAOTr0 MOsSIBY Ha JIAaHAKapPTi.

Kawou4osi csao0ea: nanaxapTa, ropojuile, JIOACbKI IOocesieHHs, MicTo, yp6anisaris,
ctapojaBHii BaJs, OnemtHssHCbKUM noBiT, XVIII cTosiTTa

INTRODUCTION

The cartographic heritage of Ukraine is quite significant and has a long history.
The first images of Ukrainian lands were pictured on ancient maps, and throughout
the early modern period they were regularly displayed on pan-European and Polish-
Lithuanian Commonwealth maps. Though, due to military and political events, it was
scattered in the archives and libraries of other countries. A significant part of the
maps depicting Ukrainian territories is kept in the Swedish National Archives,
libraries in France, and the United States of America. But the largest collection of such
maps, unfortunately, is kept in the archives of the Russian Federation. Such maps
mainly pictured the river system and the most significant settlements.
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With the development of cartography in the territory of the Polish-Lithuanian
Commonwealth, there appeared drawings on which archaeological sites were
marked. They were mainly hillforts and mounds. The most vivid example is the map
of the French military engineer in the service of the Polish Crown H.L.de Boplan,
where the fortifications of the times of Kyivan Rus are marked. The Moscow School of
Cartography was significantly behind the European school. Thus, in the 17th century,
the main type of map was a fixed drawing - that is, a schematic drawing of the area
without the scale and proportions of the depicted objects.

In the first third of the 18th century, larger-scale mathematically based drawings
began to be created. There was space and an opportunity to depict more objects and
components. On the territory of the modern Sumy region, which in the second half of
the 18th century was a part of the Slobozhanshchyna, the compilation of land maps of
individual districts was carried out. These maps were already mathematically based
and contained a more accurate representation of the terrain, which makes it possible
to use them as a source for the study of archaeological sites. The study of such
sources is complex and consists of office and field stages. The first, the office stage,
involves studying drawing elements and comparing them with modern maps. The
most complicated is the field stage, which purpose is the in-person identification and
research of the depicted archaeological sites. The most famous of them - mounds and
saltpeter fields - have visible traces on the surface, but the remains of the potash
workshop have no external signs. Therefore, ancient maps provide significant help in
their discovery. Markings of hillforts are less common. On the studied map there is an
image of two earthen fortifications - Kukuyeve and Nemyrivske, located in the middle
course of the Vorskla River, as well as a rampart that passed through the territory of a
large forest massif on the right bank of the Vorskla River.

LITERATURE REVIEW

The map proposed for publication is stored in the manuscript fund archive of the
Russian Academy of Sciences Library. This map shows the entire territory of the
county as of the first half of the 17t century. The drawing is made on a 37x43 cm
sheet of paper. The map is in the center slightly shifted to the right. Above, there are
the old and new card numbers (A3046/422 and 422, respectively)l. The map was
drawn in a graphite pencil, then the main lines were drawn in black ink, and the
frame and main elements were colored. The drawing of the topographic base is made
in an orthogonal projection, except for settlements and industrial facilities, which still
have images in perspective. The map has a mathematical component. At the bottom,
in the right corner, there is an indication of the scale in versts, but without a scale
ruler, as well as a degree grid. The meridian of 580 east longitude passes through the
map. Later, a degree grid was added in pencil, passing through all the degree marks
marked on the map and writing the letters from left to right from 1 to 20 and from
top to bottom from 1 to 7.

In the lower right corner, there is the author’s signature “Composed by surveyor
Baturyn”. Borys Baturyn is one of the two cartographers who in 1721 were sent to
the Kyiv region to survey the area and draw land maps. Together with Ivan

1 Anekcandpos B.B. Onucanune pykonucHelx kapT XVIII B., xpansmuxca B OTaesie pyKONHUCHONH KHUTH
Bubsanorteku Axkagemuu Hayk CCCP // I'Hyyeea B.®. 'eorpaduyeckuil genapTaMeHT AKaJeMHUH HayK
XVIII Beka. [Ipunoxenue 1. MockBa-J/lennnrpag, 1946, C. 307.
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Khrushchev, they were the authors of the drawings of several districts on the
territory of the modern Sumy region - Myropillya, Kamenivsk, Nedryhailiv, Putyvl,
Okhtyrka, etc. Often, a surveyor and an apprentice assistant were sent on a business
trip to divide the work, but in our case, both specialists had the appropriate specialty
for both drawing plans and independent drawing of maps2. The date of drawing up
the map was 1724, that is, the time when surveyors worked on the territory of these
districts.

The inscriptions on the map are written in civil cursive, typical for the first half of
the 18t century. In individual words, one letter is often written on top, words are
broken and have abbreviations. Their writing is situational and can be tied to the
designation or element of the map that it describes. The numbers of the degree grid
are the clearest. They are made neatly, above each, there is a mark of an angular
minute.

The archaeological sites depicted on the 1724 map are well-known in scientific
literature. They are mentioned in the works of Archbishop Filaret3 and D. Bagaliis?,
who used the questionnaire method of information collection. At the end of the
1930s, the middle course of the Vorskla River was investigated by the archaeological
expedition of P. Tretyakov. In particular, the excavations of the settlement in Zarichne
and explorations in the territory of the Zhuravnensky archaeological complex were
carried out. According to the research results, the hillforts were assigned to the
Romanian Ancient Rus periods. At the end of the 20t and the beginning of the
21st centuries, these settlements were excavated. Thus, during the expeditions, large-
scale explorations were conducted in the region while several settlements relevant to
this study were discovered. O.P.Motsia made excavations of the Zhuravnensky
archaeological complex, V.V.Pryimak discovered Zarichnel settlement, while
D.S. Hrechko assisted by the author carried out reconnaissance in the upper reaches
of the Sosonka Riveré. In 2019-2021, V. Zhigola and V. Skorohod carried out research
on the site of Zarichne 1 hillfort. As a result, the remains of fortifications, which may
date back to the 12t century, as well as several economic and residential buildings of
the 10th-12th centuries?, were discovered.

2 [onvdeHbepe J1.A. Muxaua CnupuzoHoBud 'Bo3zges (Hauyaso XVIII B. - mocse 1759 r.). MockBa: Hayka,
1985. C.21; Jleemsipes C.H., Kpusowes Hp.He. IHKopnopauuss GYHYYKOBOI'O TOBAapHILECTBa B COCTaB
cayebHOU U conuaJbHON 3auThl Poccuiickoit umnepuu B nocienHeit tTpetu XVII B. // Bylye Gody.
2016. Ne42(4). C.1118-1126; /feemsapes C.H. Uctopuss yMHOBHMYecTBa Poccuiickoil uMIepuu B
poccuiickoit ucropuorpadpuu XIX - Hauasna XX BB. // Bylye Gody. 2014. Ne 34 (4). C. 554-558.

3 Quaapem. UcTopuko-cTaTUCTUYECKOE onycaHue XapbKoBckoy emapxuu. Mocksa: Turm. B. 'oTee, 1857.
Ota. I11. C. 55-57, 107-108.

4 baeaseli /].H. TlpeaucioBre K apxeooruyeckoil kapte XapbKoBCKOH ry6. O6'bsICHUTE/IbHBIM TEKCT K
apxeoJiornyeckoid kapTe XapbkoBckod rybepuuun // Tpyabr XII Apxeosorudeckoro cwesza. T.1.
Mocksa: U3g. MAO, 1905. C. 1-2.

5 Tpemobsikos [L.M. CTapoJaBHi CJIOB'STHCbKI TopojuLia ¥ BepxHil Teuii p. Bopcksa // ApxeoJioris. 1947.
T.1.C. 123-128.

6 Moys1 A.Il, Opaos P.C, IokacIlM. OT4éT o paboTe [IHENPOBCKOHW [ApeBHEPYCCKON 3KCIEeJULUU B
c. KypaBHoe B 1986 . // HaykoBui apxiB IHcTutyTy apxeosiorii HAH Ykpainu. ®.e. Ne 22024-22027.
1986/30. C.1-3; Ipuiimak B.B. IlyTuBibcbke yAinbHe KHA3IBcTBO YepHiroso-CiBepimunu. IlostaBa:
Texcepsic, 2007. C.160; I'peuko/.C, bBepecm IO.M., Kopoms O.B, Ocaduuii€.M, Kpromuenko O.0.
Apxeosoriuni po3sigku Ha CymuuHi y 2015 p. // ®eHomeH Binbcbkoro ropoauma 2016. 36ipHuK
MaTepiasiB HaykoBol koHepeH1ii. Kuis-IlonTasa: LIl HAH Ykpainu i YTOIIIK, 2016. C. 222-224.

7 XKueona B, Ckopoxod B, Cumuii I0. [ocnigpxeHHs1 Ha 3apiYHEHCbKOMY apXeoJIOriYHOMY KOMILJIEKCI.
Apxeosioeiuni docaioxcerHs 8 Ykpaini 2020. Kuis: InctutyT apxeosorii HAH Ykpainy, 2022. C. 279-280.
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This work continues a series of publications by the authors, in which maps of the
early modern era are analyzed and archeological monuments are depicted on them.
On the map, G.L.de Boplan analyzed the territory, which in the first half of the
17t century was located on the border of Moscovia and the Polish Crown. The
hillforts depicted on it played a prominent role in the work of the Interstate
Commission on Border Delineations.

Previously, the map “Plan of Oleshnya Town” of the beginning of the 18t century
from the Moscow Military Historical Archive was introduced into scientific
circulation, which depicts a part (mainly the northern) of the Oleshnya district. In this
work, a similar block of information has been analyzed. All the monuments of
archeology have been localized, and the location of the destroyed monuments has
also been determined. A separate analysis of the remains of the fortifications of the
Oleshnya fortress of the 17th-18th centuries was carried out, which spares us from
repetition®.
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Fig. 1. Kukuyeve hillfort on the map of Oleshnya District in 1724.

DISCUSSION AND RESULTS

Archaeological sites on the map have a rather specific conventional sign - a
pentagon with the inscription “empty earth settlement” inside. Such an image is the
largest among conventions. Its choice and design prove the importance of old earthen
fortifications.

8 fleemsipee C.U, Ocaduuii E.H. JlenumuTtauus rpaHunbsl Mexnay Pedbto [locmosnTodl M MOCKOBCKHM
napcTBoM B Mexypeube Cysbl u CeiiMa B nepBoii mosioBuHe XVII Beka // Bylye Gody. 2022. Ne 17 (4).
C.1513-1522.

9 Ocaduuii EM. «[lnan ropony AnewmwHu» mnepmoi nosoBuHd XVII cronitta // CrapoxuTHOCTI
JliBo6epexHoro IogHinpos’s - 2021: 36ipHUK HaykoBUx nparp. [lam’saTi LT. lloBkomsca (1921-1997).
Xapkis-IlontaBa: TOB «Makan», 2022. C. 161-170.
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The first fortification is in the eastern part of the map and is probably the
Kukuyeve hillfort (fig. 1). Its name is well-known to residents and is often found in
land grant documents from the second half of the 17th century?°. This hillfort is part of
an archaeological complex, which consists of a fortification on a high promontory on
the right bank of the Vorskla River, a settlement, and a burial mound. The hillfort is
oval. On the northern plain side, it is fortified with a 6-8 m wide, 2-3 m deep ditch laid
5 m below the level of the site of the hillfort. The horseshoe-shaped rampart is 4 m
high and 5 to 10 m wide. The slopes of the hillfort are steep.

The scarp is laid 10 m below the level of the site. The width of the site varies from 1
to 3 m (fig. 3a)1L. The settlement is located on the same cape on the north side of the
hillfort. It is bounded by steep slopes on three sides, and from the northeast, there was
a defence line consisting of a ditch 3 m wide and up to 1.5 m deep!2. The rampart is not
visually traceable due to the numerous replanning of this part of the settlement and the
construction of a cultural center on its territory. The settlement contains a powerful
cultural layer full of materials from Romanian archaeological culture and Ancient Rus
times. Its northern slope is destroyed by erosion caused by natural and anthropogenic
factors - along there is a descent that runs to the creek. In 2002, an archaeological
expedition led by V.Pryimak carried out rescue excavations on the site where the
profile of a buried structure was discovered in the cliff. It was almost destroyed. Thus, it
was possible to explore only one of the corners. The building belonged to the Romanian
culture, was abandoned, and turned into a garbage dump. Its filling was dominated by
soil saturated with ash and coal with large fragments of moulded ware.

Pt “GTF g ] P T Milgyfanie., T C Rt N A" 47

.‘*)3;‘

.7 : /|
P Tpambiae 16

Fig. 2. Nemyrivske hillfort and the “ancient rampart” on the map of 1724.

10 Russian State Archive of Ancient Acts. Fund 210. List 12. File 846. Page 768.

11 MopeyHos F0.10., [puiimak B.B.,, Ocaduuii €M, Kopoms O.B. Topoauia poMeHCbKO-JaBHbOPYCbKOIO
yacy Cymcbkoi o6JacTi. XapkiB: Excipec-knura, 2022. C. 200-201.

12 )Kueona B, Ckopoxod B, Cumuii 0. [JocnimpxeHHs1 Ha 3apiyHEHCBKOMY apXeoJIoriYyHOMY KOMIIJIEKCI...
C.279.

Eminak, 2023, 2 (42)



HOBA ICTOPIA

S i

Fig. 3. Kukuyeve hillfort and finds. A - a plan of the hillfort, b - finds.
1-2 - items from the hoard in 2002 (excavations by V.V. Pryimak),
3-4 - finds from burials on the territory of the hillfort
(excavations by P.M. Tretyakov in 1938).
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Fig. 4. Nemyrivske hillfort and finds.
A - the plan of the settlement. 1 - stronghold, 2 - fortified settlement, 3 - “small” hillfort,
4 - unfortified settlement. B - findings. 5 - a fragment of the bottom of a pottery pot with a
princely sign, 6 - random finds from the territory of the fortified post.
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Among the finds, it is worth noting a bone cover for a quiver and an amulet made
of a boar’s claw. In the ashy filling, compactly assembled ornaments were discovered,
which consisted of a series of blue and yellow beads and carnelian multifaceted. The
same set included bronze pendants in the form of four and three rings, cast buttons,
and a belt retinue plaque with a hole transformed into a neck ornament (fig. 3b).

This set can be dated to the first decades of the 11th century. It is interesting, first,
because it included things of the retinue origin - buttons and a plaque, which were
transformed into necklace decorations!3. An openwork bone plate with the image of a
mythical animal - a griffin can be attributed to the same category of finds. It was also
used as a neck ornament!4. Such decorations, made from objects of the retinue circle
of antiquities, are evidence of contacts of the northern population with
representatives of the Grand Duke administration, who were often natives of
Scandinavian countries or their descendants. Later, they disappear and in the middle
of the 11th century, there are no encounters with them, which relates to changes in
the political life of the Ancient Rus state - the division of power between the brothers
Mstyslav and Yaroslav after the Battle of Lystven in 1024.

The second hillfort is located in the southern part of the map between the villages
of Zhuravne and Ryboten, which makes its localization quite easy. This is a stronghold
of the historical city of Losychi, scientifically known as Nemyrivske or Zhuravne 1
(fig. 2)15. This hillfort is located on a mountain, the only terrain feature on the entire
map. According to the way the mountain and the settlement are depicted, we can
conclude where exactly the surveyor was located, namely in the creek, east of the
settlement. In the foreground, a narrow promontory of the stronghold is highlighted,
behind which a fortified position is depicted (fig. 4a). At the end of the 9t - the
beginning of the 10th century, a large settlement was founded by Northerners on the
high end of the right bank of the Vorskla River. Usually, the settlement structure of
the northerners consisted of a fortified hillfort, a settlement, and a burial mound. In
this case, two hillforts were built at a short distance from each other. An open
settlement and a burial mound began to form around them. At the end of the
10th century, the Kyiv princes began campaigns against the northern tribes to
subjugate them. The destruction of the hillfort in the Demydiv Bugor tract dates to
this time. It was never restored. On the surface of the hillfort, depressions from the
pits of buried structures are still visible. There is no village near this hillfort, and
there is a single mound 100 m from the rampart.

Later, the center of life is transferred to the Great Hillfort. It was built in an area
with a difficult topography. Erosion processes have formed several promontories and
remnants with steep slopes, which are suitable for defence with minimal use of force.
The hillfort consists of three parts. The stronghold is located at the end and rises
above Vorskla creek. Its slopes are steep, and on the side of the settlement, there is a
rampart up to 2 m high. In the southern part of the site, there was a water pit or a
well. The lack of space made the northerners place this structure close to the edge of

13 [Iputimak B.B, Ocaduuii €M, bBepecm IO.M. [leB’sTHapusatuii ce3oH CyMcbKol apxeoJioTiqyHOl
ekcrieaunii // ApxeosioriuHi BiAKpuTTA B YKpaini 2001-2002 pp. Kuis: Bug, lllsax, 2003. C. 231-232.

14 XKueona B, Ckopoxod B, Cumuii I0. [JocnimpxeHHs1 Ha 3apiyHEHCBKOMY apXeoJIOTiYHOMY KOMIIJIEKCI...
C. 279, puc. 1.

15 MopeyHos F0.10., Ipuiimak B.B.,, Ocaduuii €M, Kopoms O.B. Topoauia poMeHCbKO-JaBHbOPYCbKOIO
yacy... C. 184-185.
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the slope. Over time, erosion processes destroyed the thin outer wall, and a deep
depression was formed at the edge of the hillfort. To the west of the stronghold, there
is an extensive fortified settlement. It is located lower and does not have steep slopes.
The remains of fortifications are recorded only in the northern part, and they are
insignificant in size. There is another fortification on the northern side of the
settlement. It is small and the latest building in the structure of the hillfort. The open
settlement occupies several capes and the remains of the right bank of the Vorskla
River, as well as areas in the creek around the hillfort. It was a typical settlement
structure for northerners. Changes in the social and political structure of the northern
population occurred in 1024. After Mstyslav’s victory at Listven, the burials of the
retinue disappeared. According to the chronicles, Mstyslav’'s army consisted of
northerners and cavalry of nomadic tribes as opposed to the Varangian army of
Prince Yaroslav. After occupying the Chernihiv throne, representatives of the former
administration were expelled and replaced by Mstyslav’s military retinue. After the
death of Mstyslav Udaly, power returned to Yaroslav.

The discovery of the bottom of a pottery pot found by the author in the dump of a
robber’s pit relates to the presence of a representative of the authorities. It has an
imprint of a kryn (a lily-like pattern), which is a princely sign (fig. 4, 55). Usually, such
signs were placed on measuring pots, which served as a standard when conducting
trade transactions. The image on the bottom has no analogs in the nearest
archaeological sites. The image refers to a heraldic bicuspid with a crossed left prong.
Similar family signs are associated with the princely family of Vsevolod Olgovych,
Prince of Siversk, Chernihiv, and later Kyiv, who ruled in the first half of the
12th century. The image from the bottom of a pot from Zhuravne is similar but has
some differences. There is speculation that the pot was either a fake or a replacement
for a broken original. The ornaments that come from the hillfort and settlement have
analogies among the antiquities of the second half of the 10th-12th centuries and
belong to the bearers of the late stage of Romanian archaeological culture and the
Ancient Rus population (fig. 4, 56).

Both hillforts are in the middle course of the Vorskla River and were part of the
same tribal union of the Northerners, and later the Pereyaslav principality. They
survived the Mongol pogrom in the winter of 1239/1240 and continued to exist as
small rural settlements until the battle of Vorskla in 1399.

The third archaeological site has its name “ancient rampart” (fig. 2). This defensive
structure is stretched from south to north. On the map, it is shown to the west of the
road from Okhtyrka to Sumy, and in its northern part, it intersects with the road
Oleshnya - Trostyanets. The rampart is in a large forest massif called the Buimer
forest. This area has an extremely complex topography - ravines with steep slopes,
which are tributaries of the Buimer stream. In the central part, the rampart has a
bend of the “redan” type, but it has a considerable length to be a constructive element
of the defence. It starts from the Kukuyeve hillfort and ends a little south of the road
connecting Trostyanets with Lebedyn, between the villages of Stanova and Zubivka.
Such accuracy in drawing the rampart makes it possible to clearly outline the area of
its location. This is the territory of the Boromlya and Buimer watershed, which runs
in the north-western direction and is crossed by the road from Trostyanets to
Mashchanka and Oleshnya. That is where the rampart shown on the map should be
located.
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During several field seasons, this territory was surveyed by the Sumy
archaeological expedition with the author’s participation. During this time, several
archaeological sites from different times were discovered, but no traces of the
rampart were found. Although there are references to its construction in the
document of 1652 the “Measuring book with a description of the places where guards
are set up” is the result of a large-scale reconnaissance from Oboyana to Oleshnya and
Kamiane to identify weak points in the border defence. Thus, it describes the territory
from the Trostyanets stream to the big black forest, where they had to fill a rampart
and build a fort6. Thus, there is a mention of the intention to fill the rampart exactly
where it is shown on the map. One of the elements of this defensive structure was
discovered between the village of Zarichne and Trostyanets. These are the remains of
the observation tower near the mound?’. But further to the north, no traces of the
rampart were found, besides, this structure is located east of the Okhtyrka - Sumy
Road, which contradicts the location of the rampart on the map. To the east, on the
Sosonka River, there were the remains of the fortifications of the Losytsk fortress
from the middle of the 17t century, but no remains of a rampart were found near it
either!8, A rampart could not disappear without a trace in an area where the forest is
growing, and no earthworks were carried out. Its remains, at least in the form of
separate sections, had to be preserved.

What shaft was depicted on the map of 1724? Surveyor Borys Baturyn was an
experienced specialist who took and drew a significant number of maps of the
districts of North-Eastern Ukraine, and this issue requires detailed consideration.

As to the map, it is necessary to consider the fact that the main survey was
conducted along the border of the Oleshnya district and the rivers. That is, these are
areas of open terrain where it is possible to triangulate the main shooting points and
refine them using astronomical measurements. It is extremely difficult to carry out
the same work in a dense forest. The line-of-sight distance in the forest does not
exceed 5-10 m, and the difference in terrain complicates shooting. The absence of
terrain relief is a feature of land maps, and therefore there was no need for detailed
shooting in the forest area. Therefore, the main works were carried out around the
forest, and the massif was also inspected only slightly.

There are ramparts in the Buimer forest, and they are the remains of the defensive
structures of three settlements of the early Iron Age, located at the source of the
Sosonka River. This unique location of three hillforts on neighbouring capes gives the
impression of a continuous rampart!®. The impression of a long shaft is
complemented by a notice about a settlement near the village of Zubivka (Zubov
gorod), at the headwaters of the Buimer stream. So far, it has not yet been discovered,
but its location and description, published by D.I. Bahaliem testify to its considerable

16 AkThI, oTHOCcAUmMecss K Masopoccun. Coo6iueHsl B.U. Xoamozoposwbim. UTeHuss B MMnepaTopckom
obuiecTBe HCTOpUM M JpeBHocTed Poccuiickux npu MockoBckoM YHuBepcutete. MockBa: B
YHuBepcureTckoi Tunorpaduu Ha CTpacTHOM Oy/bBape. Anipesb-UioHb. KHura BTopas. 1885. C. 18.

17 Ocadyuii €.M. CTopoxxoBu# noct BosbHiBCbKoI finsiHky Binropoacekoi 3aciunoi cmyru // Apxeosioris
i ¢poptudikauisa Ykpainu. 36ipHuk MatepianiB VI MixkHapogHol HayKOBO-NPaKTUYHOI KOHepeHIil.
Kam'sinenp-Iloginbcokuit: 11 Byitnunbkuii 0.A., 2016. C. 244-245.

18 Ocadyuil €M. 3amok lepemii BumiHeBeubkoro Ha Cepepnit Bopckai // HaykoBi 3anucku
[HanionanbHoro 3anoBignuka «3amMku TepHomniia»]. 2017. Ne 7. C. 173-175.

19 I'peuxo /.C, Bepecm I0.M., Kopoms O.B.,, Ocaduuii €M, Kpromuenko 0.0. ApxeosioriuHi po3BiJKu Ha
CymuuHiy 2015 p.... C. 223-224.
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size20. Thus, most likely, geodesist Borys Baturyn could take several hillforts located
along the Buimer stream as a single rampart.

CONCLUSIONS

Thus, we can conclude the following. The map of 1724 is a valuable source for
studying not only the early modern history of Ukraine but also individual monuments
of archaeology. Such sources are not always accurate but sometimes contain
information about the location of now-emerged archaeological objects or their lost
names. In this case, we are dealing with the introduction to the scientific circulation of
one pictorial source of the first half of the 18t century and the authors’ attempt to
localize and connect the objects on the map with specific archaeological monuments.
Some of the archaeological sites marked on the map are well-known settlements of
the pre-state and Ancient Rus periods. Their application is accurate and does not
cause doubts. Therefore, the presence of a large rampart, which, despite almost a
century of research in this area, was never discovered, is at least partially one of the
mysteries of this source. The authors speculate on the interpretation of this image
and its possible connection with real hillforts.
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